BYLAWS OF THE RIVERSIDE CITY COLLEGE ACADEMIC SENATE

PREAMBLE

The Riverside City College Academic Senate ("RCCAS") can propose, change, and amend its Bylaws by a majority vote of all of its members provided that (1) motions to amend the Bylaws must be proposed in writing and (2) two weeks must elapse between the making of a motion to amend and any action to adopt the motion.

ARTICLE I. MEETINGS & PROCEEDINGS

- 1. Regular RCCAS meetings will be scheduled in the Hall of Fame of the Bradshaw Student Center from 3:00 until 5:00 PM on the first and third Mondays of each month (contract holidays excepted) during the academic year, unless otherwise announced.
- 2. RCCAS meetings and faculty meetings called by the RCCAS are conducted under the parliamentary guidance of the most recent edition of Robert's Rules of Order, Revised.
- 3. Space for public comments related to the purview of RCCAS will be included in each agenda.
 - The public may comment on items not included on the agenda during the "Public Comments" agenda item only.
 - Total time for public comments will be limited to 10 minutes.
 - Time limits for each individual speaker will be 3 minutes, unless there are several speakers in which case time may be reduced to ensure public comment is limited to 10 minutes.
 - According to Robert's Rules of Order, Public comment is to be germane to the duties of the body, relate to current or new items for discussion and decision by the body, be respectful, and avoid the use of names or pejoratives.
 - RCCAS members may not discuss nor may they take action on public comments
 associated with items not on the agenda. If an RCCAS senator determines that the
 issue needs further discussion, the member may submit an agenda item dedicated to
 the issue at a subsequent meeting.
- 4. The RCCAS shall establish its own agenda by simple majority vote of the members present. The agenda must be established in accordance with State laws and regulations. Any member of the Riverside City College faculty may submit agenda items to the RCCAS. The established agenda may be abridged by majority vote or by consensus of the members present.
- 5. The RCCAS President will contact any Senator who misses three regularly scheduled meetings to assess the problem. If appropriate, the RCCAS President will contact the Senator's Department Chair regarding such absenteeism, with the hope of resolving the situation and avoiding departmental under-representation. Replacement of such absentee Senators may be necessary.

6. At its discretion, the RCCAS may authorize the RCCAS President to act on its behalf during the summer months. Wherever possible, action should be deferred until the Senate can meet and confer during the academic year.

ARTICLE II. ELECTIONS

- 1. Elections are conducted according to Article VIII of the Constitution.
- 2. The call for nominations shall be made at least three weeks in advance of the holding of an open faculty meeting which will constitute the closing of nominations.
- 3. In those years when the offices of President, Vice President, and Secretary-Treasurer are open for election, the College Academic Senate shall arrange in a timely manner through its committees for an open forum at which candidates for these positions may present themselves and their programs to the voting faculty.
- 4. Elections shall be conducted electronically or by campus mail in such a manner as to maximize the integrity of the electoral process.
- 5. The Nominations Committee shall establish the dates and times for distribution, collection, and counting of ballots so that the results can be posted immediately after votes are counted. The Nominations Committee will conduct the election in such a manner as to minimize the interference of the Spring Break with the election process.
- 6. The Nominations Committee shall request the Departments to hold elections for Department Senators and shall inform the Departments in a timely manner whenever a special need exists to fill a vacancy. Terms of office for Departmental Representatives to the Senate shall be for two (2) years with no limitation on the number of consecutive terms to which a departmental member may be elected as a Senator.
- 7. The Department representative elections shall be held as follows:

The following Departments shall elect representatives in odd-numbered years:

Applied Technology; Behavioral Sciences/Psychology; Business, Law, and Computer Information Systems; Communication Studies: English & Media Studies; History, Philosophy, Humanities, and Ethnic Studies; Library & Learning Resources; Life Sciences; Mathematics; Music; World Languages.

The following Departments shall elect representatives in even-numbered years:

Art; Chemistry; Cosmetology; Counseling/Student Activities; School of Education & Teacher Preparation; Economics, Geography, Political Science; Nursing; Dance and Theater; Physical Science; Kinesiology.

Approved 3/18/24

- 8. In the event that a departmentally-elected Senator is unable to serve due to extended medical leave, semester-abroad assignment, sabbatical leave, load-bank leave, other leave of absence, or is otherwise unable to regularly attend Senate meetings, the Department shall elect a replacement representative for the balance of the term and so indicate in Department minutes.
- 9. Where the Constitution requires election by majority vote, a runoff election will be held between the top two vote-getters. In some cases involving tie votes, a runoff between more than two candidates could occur.
- 10. Ballots and election results shall be kept on file in the Academic Senate office and shall be available for review for 120 days.

ARTICLE III. RIVERSIDE CITY COLLEGE EDUCATIONAL PLANNING, LEADERSHIP COUNCILS, COMMITTEES AND WORKGROUPS

Section 1: Educational Planning Oversight Committee

- A. Pursuant to RCCAS's role in educational planning and budgeting under Title 5, §53200.10, the RCCAS President shall work with the President of Riverside City College to create an overarching strategic planning and operations structure for Riverside City College. The central structure shall be named the Strategic Planning Council and its primary input shall be the Educational Planning Oversight Committee ("EPOC"). The primary responsibility of the EPOC shall be to monitor institutional progress toward achieving college goals and to provide recommendations to the college president. EPOC also shall oversee and direct the general work of the Strategic Planning Leadership Councils ("SPLCs") and shall serve as the Accreditation Steering Committee when necessary.
- B. The Constitution and Bylaws of EPOC and the Riverside Strategic Planning Councils shall be ratified by the RCCAS. Any proposed changes to this document shall be brought before the RCCAS for consideration and ratification.
- C. The President of RCCAS shall accept nominations for faculty co-chair of EPOC, which will be brought to the RCCAS for deliberation and election. The President of Riverside City College shall choose an administrative co-chair for EPOC. These two will jointly oversee EPOC.
- D. The term of the faculty co-chair of EPOC shall be two years.
- E. The faculty co-chair of EPOC shall be regarded as an ex-officio, non-voting member of the RCCAS and shall provide regular reports the RCCAS.

Section 2: Strategic Planning Leadership Councils

- A. The Strategic Planning Leadership Councils ("SPLCs") allow all members of the college community to participate in the decision-making process. Membership includes students, faculty, classified professionals, and administration. The SPLCs develop the college's long-range plans, review and approve the Five-Year Comprehensive Program Review Plans in the areas for which they are responsible, monitor the specific activities of each unit and evaluate each unit's Annual Assessment report, and link goals, vision, and processes for planning to resource allocation.
- B. The SPLCs, in accordance with their respective charges, shall determine when meetings are necessary in order to:
 - 1. Develop and implement the college's long-range strategic plans;
 - 2. Create integrated action plans to monitor, evaluate, and advance each unit's action plans;
 - 3. Make recommendations to the Educational Planning Oversight Committee;
 - 4. Facilitate the dissemination of strategic planning information to the college community;
 - 5. Advance the implementation of college goals and targets; and
 - 6. Assess the progress each year the college makes to achieve its targets.
- C. The four (4) leadership councils are Student Access and Support (SAS); Teaching and Learning (TL); Resource Development and Administrative Services (RDAS); and Governance, Effectiveness, Mission and Quality (GEMQ).
- D. With the assistance of the faculty co-chair of EPOC, the RCCAS President shall accept nominations for the presiding faculty co-chairs of the SPLCs and bring them to the RCCAS for ratification. Appointments for presiding faculty co-chair and other faculty positions on the SPLCs shall be for two years; incumbents may be reappointed. To the degree possible, appointments shall be staggered terms. Members may be removed after three absences at the discretion of the constituent group. At the beginning of each academic year, the council shall provide the EPOC with a roster of voting members and other participating members.
- E. The faculty co-chairs of SPLCs shall represent their committees as ex-officio, non-voting members of the RCCAS and shall provide monthly reports to the RCCAS.
- F. The composition and charge of the SPLCs shall be articulated in the Constitution and Bylaws of EPOC and the Riverside Strategic Planning Councils.

Section 3: Standing Committees

A. In general, committees perform work necessary for the policy and procedure recommendations of the SPLCs. Other committees are charged with addressing faculty issues under Title 5 §53200's "10+1" and serve as stand-alone strategic and operational inputs, such as Curriculum. Committees that are tasked with academic issues (e.g.

Curriculum, Academic Standards, Associate Faculty) shall consist solely of faculty as voting members.

- B. Committees shall elect their chair in the spring prior to the term that begins in the fall. Faculty chairs of Committees shall be selected by the membership of the Committee and brought before RCCAS for confirmation. Committees who wish to do so may designate a faculty co-chair. The Chair of the Curriculum Committee shall serve as an *ex officio*, non-voting member of the RCCAS and shall provide reports as needed, at least once per semester, to RCCAS with the co-chairs of the Leadership Councils.
- C. Committees shall meet, at a minimum, once a month during the academic year.

 Committees may meet as part of District-wide committees where the Colleges of the

 District cooperate under the auspices of a Standing Committee of the District Academic

 Senate.
- D. The College President or designee shall identify an Administrator to serve as non-voting co-chair and to provide a liaison to the Administration on any Committee that has a committee that meets at the District level.

1. Curriculum Committee

- a. The Riverside City College faculty shall establish a Curriculum Committee, for the purposes of representing the faculty through the Senate to the Administration and to the Board of Trustees on all matters relating to any courses offered by the College. The Committee may freely utilize the expertise of all faculty in questions regarding specific courses, and shall direct special attention to the general issues of curriculum philosophy and development.
- b. The term of the chair of the Curriculum Committee shall be two years, beginning in the fall of even- numbered years. Should the Curriculum Committee choose a co-chair, the term shall commence in the fall of odd-numbered years.
- c. The Curriculum Committee shall be composed of Department representatives serving two-year terms of office. When new departments are established and their election year specified in the Bylaws or Bylaw revision is not synchronous with the time of scheduled elections or bylaws revision, a representative shall be elected to fill the length of the term remaining until the next scheduled election.
- d. In the event that a departmentally elected Curriculum Committee representative is unable to serve due to extended medical leave, semester- abroad assignment, sabbatical leave, other leave of absence, or is otherwise unable to regularly attend Curriculum Committee meetings, the Department shall elect a replacement representative for the balance of the term.

e. The following Departments shall elect Curriculum representatives in oddnumbered years:

Applied Technology; Behavioral Sciences/Psychology; Business, Law, and Computer Information Systems; Communication Studies: English & Media Studies; History, Philosophy, Humanities, and Ethnic Studies; Library & Learning Resources; Life Sciences; Mathematics; Music; World Languages.

The following Departments shall elect Curriculum representatives in evennumbered years:

Art; Chemistry; Cosmetology; Counseling/Student Activities; School of Education & Teacher Preparation; Economics, Geography, Political Science; Nursing; Dance and Theater; Physical Science; Kinesiology.

- f. The RCC Articulation Officer is a voting member of the curriculum committee.
- g. Election of members of the Curriculum Committee shall take place by the fulltime faculty members of the Departments in the same manner as Department Senators are chosen. Curriculum Committee members shall serve beginning on the first day of service of the academic year.

2. Academic Standards Committee

- a. The Riverside City College faculty shall have representatives on the District Academic Standards Committee. This committee will effectively function as a district committee with college representatives. RCCAS reserves the right to reformulate this committee as a college committee, if deemed necessary. Academic Standards exists for the purpose of recommending policy pertaining to student academic standards at Riverside Community College District and therefore, at Riverside City College. For example, the committee may recommend grading policies, withdrawal policies, degree standards, certificate standards, performance testing, remedial standards, transfer standards, non-transfer standards.
- b. The Academic Standards committee is composed of the curriculum chairs from each college in the district, the three Articulation officers from each college in the district, and one faculty member from each college's curriculum committee. As such, RCCAS is represented by its elected curriculum chair and another departmentally elected faculty from the curriculum committee, whose election is identified in the "Curriculum Committee' section of this document (3D1).

3. Departmental Leadership Committee

- a. The Riverside City College faculty shall recognize the Departmental Leadership Committee, which shall be tasked with articulating departmental and disciplinary issues, considering best practices for departmental operations, scheduling, and working with Academic Deans to assess and prioritize Comprehensive Program Review and five-year plans and other departmental and disciplinary matters.
- b. The members of the Departmental Leadership Council shall be constituted of department chairs as established in the prevailing "Agreement between Riverside Community College District and Riverside Community College District Faculty Association CCA/CTA/NEA."

Section 4: Subcommittees

- A. Subcommittees perform work necessary for the policy and procedure recommendations of the SPLCs and Committees. Typically, Subcommittees work directly with the Committees to which they are attached. Subcommittees that are tasked with academic issues (e.g. Professional Growth and Sabbatical Leave, Course and Program Assessment, Faculty Program Review) shall consist solely of faculty as voting members. Subcommittees charged with ongoing, regular strategic and operational functions (such as Course and Program Assessment) shall have structures that mirror the college's departmental structure.
- B. Subcommittees shall choose their chairs by majority vote at their first meeting, except for the chair of PGSL and the Faculty Development Subcommittee. This chair, the Faculty Development Coordinator, shall be determined by the subcommittee's members, brought to the President of RCCAS and the President of Riverside City College and confirmed by the RCCAS. The faculty chairs of other Subcommittees shall be selected by the membership of the Subcommittee and brought before RCCAS for confirmation.
- C. Subcommittees shall meet, at a minimum, once a month during the academic year. Subcommittees may meet as part of District-wide committees where the colleges of the District cooperate under the auspices of a Standing Committee of the District Academic Senate.
- D. Each Subcommittee that has a District Academic Senate counterpart shall have an Academic Administrator to serve as non-voting co-chair and to provide a liaison to the Administration.

1. Professional Growth and Sabbatical Leave Subcommittee (PGSL)

a. The RCCAS shall establish a Professional Growth and Sabbatical Leave Subcommittee, for the purpose of representing the faculty on all matters relating to professional growth and sabbatical leave. This subcommittee will

- effectively function as a district committee with college representatives. RCCAS reserves the right to reformulate this committee as a college committee, if deemed necessary.
- b. Two members of the RCC faculty will serve as voting members on the Riverside Community College District (RCCD) PGSL Committee, except when one of the members is serving as chair (see 4D1d). One voting member will be elected in even years and the other in odd years.
- c. The term of service for each member will be two years. In the spring, RCCAS officers will solicit nominations for this committee to be later ratified at an RCCAS meeting.
- d. The chair of the RCCD PGSL rotates amongst the three colleges each year. The chair of the committee does not have a vote during their year of service.
- e. RCC representatives on the Professional Growth and Sabbatical Leave Subcommittee shall liaison with the RCC Human Resources Committee of the Resource Development and Administrative Services Leadership Council.

2. Course and Program Assessment Subcommittee

- a. The RCCAS shall establish a Course and Program Assessment Subcommittee, for the purposes of representing the faculty in the Assessment Committee, known as the Riverside Assessment Committee or RAC, and to the Board of Trustees on all matters relating to ongoing academic course, program, and institutional level learning outcome assessment. The RAC may freely utilize the expertise of all faculty in questions regarding course, program and degree level assessment and shall direct special attention to the general issues of student learning outcomes assessment philosophy and development. The goal of the committee is to inform, instruct, and provide resources to faculty to facilitate discipline and department assessments.
- b. The RAC shall be composed of Department representatives serving two-year terms of office. When new departments are established and their election year specified in the Bylaws or Bylaw revision is not synchronous with the time of scheduled elections or bylaws revision, a representative shall be elected to fill the length of the term remaining until the next scheduled election.
- c. In the event that a departmentally elected RAC representative is unable to serve due to extended medical leave, semester-abroad assignment, sabbatical leave, other leave of absence, or is otherwise unable to regularly attend Assessment Committee meetings, the Department shall elect a replacement representative for the balance of the term.

d. The following Departments shall elect Assessment representatives in odd-numbered years:

Applied Technology; Behavioral Sciences/Psychology; Business, Law, and Computer Information Systems; Communication Studies: English & Media Studies; History, Philosophy, Humanities, and Ethnic Studies; Library & Learning Resources; Life Sciences; Mathematics; Music; World Languages.

The following Departments shall elect Assessment representatives in evennumbered years:

Art; Chemistry; Cosmetology; Counseling/Student Activities; School of Education & Teacher Preparation; Economics, Geography, Political Science; Nursing; Dance and Theater; Physical Science; Kinesiology.

- e. Election of members of the RAC shall take place by the full-time faculty members of the Departments in the same manner as Department Senators are chosen. Assessment Subcommittee members shall serve beginning on the first day of service of the academic year.
- f. RAC shall liaison with the Governance, Effectiveness, Mission and Quality (GEMQ),

3. Academic Program Review Subcommittee

- a. The Riverside City College faculty shall establish an Academic Program Review Subcommittee for the purpose of working with academic units to complete Program Review and Plan (PRAP) document and Annual Unit Plan Updates or their equivalents and to bring this information to the Governance, Effectiveness, Mission and Quality (GEMQ).
- b. The Academic Program Review Committee shall be composed of Department representatives serving two-year terms of office. When new departments are established and their election year specified in the Bylaws or Bylaw revision is not synchronous with the time of scheduled elections or bylaws revision, a representative shall be elected to fill the length of the term remaining until the next scheduled election.
- c. In the event that a departmentally elected Academic Program Review Committee representative is unable to serve due to extended medical leave, semester- abroad assignment, sabbatical leave, other leave of absence, or is otherwise unable to regularly attend Academic Program Review Committee meetings, the Department shall elect a replacement representative for the balance of the term.

d. The following Departments shall elect Academic Program Review representatives in odd- numbered years:

Applied Technology; Behavioral Sciences/Psychology; Business, Law, and Computer Information Systems; Communication Studies: English & Media Studies; History, Philosophy, Humanities, and Ethnic Studies; Library & Learning Resources; Life Sciences; Mathematics; Music; World Languages.

The following Departments shall elect Academic Program Review representatives in even- numbered years:

Art; Chemistry; Cosmetology; Counseling/Student Activities; School of Education & Teacher Preparation; Economics, Geography, Political Science; Nursing; Dance and Theater; Physical Science; Kinesiology.

- e. Election of members of the Academic Program Review Committee shall take place by the full-time faculty members of the Departments in the same manner as Department Senators and Curriculum representatives are chosen. Academic Program Review Committee members shall serve beginning on the first day of service of the academic year.
- f. The Academic Program Review Subcommittee shall liaison with the Governance, Effectiveness, Mission and Quality (GEMQ) leadership council.
- g. The chair of the Academic Program Review committee also serves on district committees for which program review is a focus area.
- h. The chair of the Academic Program Review committee shall attend EPOC meetings.

4. Distance Education Subcommittee

- a. The Riverside City College faculty shall establish a Distance Education Subcommittee to develop policies and promote practices that contribute to the quality and growth of distance education and bring these to the Teaching and Learning Leadership Council and Resource Development and Administrative Services Leadership Council ("RDAS").
- b. The Distance Education Subcommittee shall be composed of six elected members serving two-year terms and representing the six divisions: Career and Technical Education; Counseling, Library and Learning Resources, and Academic Support; Fine and Performing Arts; Languages, Humanities and Social Sciences; Mathematics, Science and Kinesiology; Nursing. Three members shall be elected in even-numbered years and three shall be elected in odd-numbered years.

The following divisions shall elect representatives in odd-numbered years: Career and Technical Education; Fine and Performing Arts; Mathematics, Science and Kinesiology.

The following divisions shall elect representatives in even-numbered years: Counseling, Library and Learning Resources, and Academic Support; Languages, Humanities and Social Sciences; Nursing.

c. The Distance Education Subcommittee will interface primarily with the Technology Resources Committee of Resource Development and Administrative Services Leadership Council.

5. Faculty Development Subcommittee

- a. The RCCAS shall establish a Faculty Development Subcommittee that seeks to encourage the professional development of faculty through collegially supported learning opportunities that share the vision and values of RCC.
- b. The Faculty Development Subcommittee shall be charged with creating the faculty development section of the Staff Development Plan.
- c. The Subcommittee shall consist of twelve voting members: ten full-time faculty members proportionally representing the academic divisions and one Associate (part-time) faculty member representing Associate faculty. The full-time faculty members shall be selected by their respective divisions via division elections, and the Associate faculty members shall be selected by the Associate Faculty via an Associate faculty election. The composition of the Subcommittee shall be as follows:
 - Languages, Humanities, and Social Sciences three members
 - Career and Technical Education two members
 - Mathematics, Science and Kinesiology two members
 - Counseling, Library and Learning Resources, and Academic Support one member
 - Fine and Performing Arts one member
 - Nursing one member
 - Associate (Part-Time) Faculty one member

The above-mentioned faculty members shall serve as voting members on the Committee. Other non-voting faculty members may participate in the Committee planning and discussion.

The following divisions shall elect representatives in odd-numbered years: Career and Technical Education; Fine and Performing Arts; Mathematics, Science and Kinesiology. The following divisions shall elect representatives in even-numbered years: Counseling, Library and Learning Resources, and Academic Support; Languages, Humanities and Social Sciences; Nursing.

d. The Faculty Development Subcommittee shall liaison with the Human Resources Committee of the Resource Development and Administrative Services Leadership Council.

6. Course Materials Affordability SubCommittee

- a. The Riverside City College faculty shall establish a Course Materials Affordability Subcommittee (CMAC) to develop policies and promote practices that support efforts across the college related to Open Educational Resources (OERs), Zero Textbook Cost (ZTCs), and Low Textbook Cost (LTCs) materials in line with state legislation.
- b. The voting membership of CMAC shall be composed of six elected faculty members serving two-year terms and representing the six divisions: Career and Technical Education; Counseling, Library and Learning Resources, and Academic Support; Fine and Performing Arts; Languages, Humanities and Social Sciences; Mathematics, Science and Kinesiology; Nursing. Three members shall be elected in even-numbered years and three shall be elected in odd-numbered years.
 - The following divisions shall elect representatives in odd-numbered years: Career and Technical Education; Fine and Performing Arts; Mathematics, Science and Kinesiology.
 - The following divisions shall elect representatives in even-numbered years: Counseling, Library and Learning Resources, and Academic Support; Languages, Humanities and Social Sciences; Nursing.
- c. The CMAC will interface primarily with the Teaching and Learning Leadership Council

Section 5: Permanent Workgroups

- A. Permanent Workgroups perform work necessary for the policy and procedure recommendations of the SPLCs and Committees and generally have a charge narrower than that of Subcommittees. Typically, Permanent Workgroups work directly with the Subcommittees to which they are attached. Permanent Workgroups that are tasked with academic issues shall consist primarily of faculty and shall have, at minimum, a majority of faculty as voting members.
- B. Faculty chairs for Permanent Workgroups shall be chosen by the membership of the Permanent Workgroup.

Section 6: Temporary Workgroups

- A. Temporary Workgroups perform work necessary for the policy and procedure recommendations for strategic planning. Temporary Workgroups are given a specific, narrow charge by superordinate strategic planning groups (typically Permanent Workgroups) and may be convened or dissolved as necessary.
- B. Chairs of temporary workgroups shall be selected by the membership of the Temporary Workgroup and brought before the relevant strategic planning group for confirmation.

ARTICLE IV. ASSOCIATE FACULTY COMMITTEE

The Riverside City College faculty shall establish an Associate Faculty Committee, for the purpose of developing and representing the Associate Faculty issues to the RCCAS.

Additionally, as Associate Faculty are a valued part of the RCC faculty, any Associate Faculty member who wishes to broaden her/his experience by serving on a committee, subcommittee or workgroup other than the Associate Faculty Committee should contact the appropriate chair.

- A. The Associate Faculty Committee shall comprise five elected members serving two-year terms. Two shall be elected in even-numbered years and three shall be elected in odd-numbered years.
- B. The elected Associate Faculty Senator shall serve as chair on the committee and shall report to the RCCAS.